Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –)

1967

John Elwood Dennett v. A. P. Neilson : Appellant's Brief

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This case is an attempt on the part of the plaintiff, A. P. Neilson, to foreclose a claimed lien on property, or to terminate a claimed "license" agreement on the property on which he claims a lien. The appeal involves the illegal appointment of a receiver of the property and an illegal turn-over order of monies over which neither the purported receiver nor the court had any jurisdiction.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

On or about September 13, 1967, the lower court, without hearing any evidence of any kind, either on the question of the standing of the applicant to seek a receiver, or on the question of cause or necessity, entered an order, which purported to appoint one Alvin I. Smith as receiver of the property involved in this dispute.

Although the purported receiver has never undertaken, even yet, to qualify himself as a receiver in accordance with his purported appointment, the lower court, as part of the same order, ordered the appellant summarily, and without evidence, a trial, or due process, to turn over \$1,800.00 which appellant had collected at least two weeks before Mr. Smith's purported appointment. Despite Mr. Smith's continuing failure to perfect his prima-facia appointment, or to qualify himself as a receiver of any kind, the lower court has persisted in demanding of appellant, that he turn over the \$1,800.00, and to coerce compliance with its illegal order, has ordered the appellant to pay a \$200.00 fine, or alternatively to spend five days in jail, or alternatively to comply with the turn-over order.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks relief from the illegal turnover order and contempt finding of Judge Wilkins.
Implicit in that relief is relief from the illegal order of Judge Wilkins appointing Mr. Smith or for
that matter, anyone, as receiver of the subject
property. Implicit in that relief is also relief from
the continuing trespasses and harassments of Mr.
Smith, who above and beyond the illegality of his appointment, has yet failed to qualify himself to serve or

act in any capacity with respect to the property.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The business relationship between appellant and A. P. Neilson was the aftermath of a business relationship and law suit between A. P. Neilson and E. R. VomBaur. Appellant was co-owner with Mr. VomBaur of certain business and commercial property at 4985 So. State Street in Murray City, Utah, commonly known as TEENE TOWNE, the property in which this dispute has its actual origins.

Prior to 1960, the TEENE TOWNE property was an old run-down, abandoned, dance hall. Mr. VomBaur, who had done various assignments and sales promotions for Mr. Neilson, undertook to purchase that property from him. The sale was transacted on a Uniform Sales Contract. The relationship between Mr. VomBaur was a close relationship, being to a large degree social, besides being business, but even moreso, Mr. Neilson expressed a fondness for Mr. VomBaur, which Mr. Neilson often characterized as a feeling he would have towards his own son.

Mr. VomBaur and Mr. Neilson complemented each other to an unusual degree. Mr. Neilson had extensive financial resources, including properties he wished to promote and sell. Mr. VomBaur had unusual talents as a salesman and promoter.

After owning the TEENE TOWNE property for about a year, Mr. VomBaur undertook very extensive improvements to modernize the property and greatly enhance its value. Within a period of about six months, he had increased the appraised value from about \$125,000.00 to about \$375,000.00.

Mr. Neilson was pleased with what Mr. VomBaur was doing. He made frequent trips to the property, conversed with the workmen, expressed his satisfaction with what they were doing, and encouraged them to stay on the job.

Part way through the improvements, Mr. Neilson approached Mr. VomBaur with a plan. The plan was simply to get all of the projected improvements finished at once, instead of trying to finance them on a shoe-string. Guy Alder, who made the \$375,000.00 appraisal was an officer of Zion's First National Bank, and made the appraisal for loan purposes. Mr. Neilson, who maintains an excellent credit rating, a very substantial financial statement, and has good banking connections, had apparently made approaches to Zion's First National Bank and had received tenative approval for a loan as soon as all of the improvements were finished. Mr. Neilson saw in this the means of getting cash out of the TEENE TOWNE property instead of long-term monthly installments. The cash from the Zion's loan would pay off his contract all at once. Mr. VomBaur was agreeable to the plan of ram-rodding the improvements through to early completion. Mr. Neilson agreed in writing that he would get a bank loan for Mr. VomBaur to pay off the contract and the improvements as soon as the work was done. To expedite the completion of the improvements, he told Mr. VomBaur to forget the contract installments and to get the work done. Mr. VomBaur could work faster if he used the monthly installments on the contract as working capital.

The workmen, encouraged by Mr. Neilson's written promise and his frequent visits upon the premises, and by his obvious pleasure at their

progress, were willing to work on credit for a while.

Suddenly, Mr. Neilson did an about-face. When workmen talked to him, he told them that he wasn't going to pay them, but that they would have to get their money from Mr. VomBaur. They were obviously alarmed, and upon failure of the workmen's attorney to get any real assurance from Mr. Neilson that he would continue to stand behind the project, filed mechanics' and materialmen's liens and commenced actions to forclose them.

Upon receiving the summonses, Mr. Neilson consulted his attorney, Scott Woodland. Mr. Neilson was apparently upset over the action, and while maintaining the usual social relationship with Mr. VomBaur, decided that he would have to go through the motions of "forfeiting the contract interest of Mr. VomBaur, just to make his position clear with the workmen." He said that as soon as the liens were cleared, he would re-sell the property to Mr. VomBaur on a new contract. Mr. VomBaur took this at face value, and closed the operation down for a few days. By this time, TEENE TOWNE, a tean-ager's club was a flourishing business with thousands of members and patrons and with nightly activities.

Everything seemed to be going on schedule, until one day, it was discovered, that Mr. Neilson had, without aid of legal process, broke and entered the TEENE TOWNE property, by sheer physical force, and without effectively terminating the contract interest of Mr. VomBaur, had placed into possession, one Ray Thomas, who on his own, had undertaken to re-do the entire operation, and who, by the time he was discovered, had made rather extensive alterations in the premises.

Mr. Neilson suddenly became unavailable to Mr. VomBaur. He refused to even discuss the illegal dispossession with him. Mr. Vom-Baur consulted with appellant, who was also unable to obtain satisfactory answers. Lending to the strange turn of events the only interpretation that could be given them, namely that Mr. Neilson had reneged and gone back on everything he had promised, had led Mr. VomBaur into a trap, had left him with the full responsibility of paying the workmen, and withdrawn his financial backing, left him in apparent default on his Uniform Real Estate Contract, and had placed a stranger, one Ray Thomas in illegal possession, the last of which acts brought about the demise and cessation of the theretofore flourishing business of TEENE TOWNE, counsel (appellant) commenced an action and enjoined the trespass and illegal entry of Mr. Neilson until the matter could be concluded.

Mr. Neilson thereupon filed an action to quiet his title as against Mr. VomBaur. The three cases, (1) The lien-claimants case against Mr. Neilson and Mr. VomBaur, (2) Mr. VomBaur's case against Mr. Thomas and Mr. Neilson, and (3) Mr. Neilson's case against Mr. VomBaur were all consolidated for trial.

Although Mr. Neilson had been in virtual partnership with Mr. VomBaur, the trial court held that his interest in the property was not subject to the mechanic's liens. Mr. VomBaur virtually confessed a liability to the mechanics and materielmen, which is as it should have been. Mr. Neilson, however, was so utterly unable to make even a prima-facia case against Mr. VomBaur, that the trial court granted a motion to dismiss his case against Mr. VomBaur as soon

as Mr. Neilson rested. His forfeiture case was so completely devoid of merit that the trial court didn't even want to hear the defense.

Vindicated in his claim that Mr. Neilson's illegal entry into Teene Towne had been nothing but a breaking and entering, Mr. VomBaur and appellant, (who had become co-owner of the property through the victory against Mr. Neilson) commenced an action against Mr. Neilson for the damages he had caused to the TEENE TOWNE enterprise by his illegal trespass. Damages were assessed in the complaint at \$1,800,000.00.

Mr. Neilson discharged his attorneys and retained J. Reed Tuft to represent him. Mr. Tuft took a soft-sell on appellant and Mr. VomBaur. By feigning remorse at his mistakes, shifting the blame for the unwise course of action he had taken to Scott Woodland, who, Mr. Tuft and Mr. Neilson claimed had grossly misled his client, and shifting the blame to Mr. Neilson's alleged excessive consumption of alcoholic beverages, about which appellant knew nothing at the time, and by lamenting that Mr. Neilson was all but shut down on his credit resources due to the pendency of that damage suit, Mr. Tuft finally convinced appellant and Mr. VomBaur that Mr. Neilson should be forgiven for his mistakes, that he would do almost anything in return for a dismissal of the damage action, and that he would sell the TEENE TOWNE property back at a Big discount, on contract, if the appellant and Mr. VomBaur would allow him to quiet his title to the property without contest.

As an added inducement, Mr. Neilson, having learned through his attorney, Reed Tuft, who had learned through another client Asael Sorenson, that appellant had made application for a mortgage loan on the Surety Building, offered to lend his credit,

financial statement, and to use his banking connections to get a loan for appellant locally.

While this offer lent some temptation to the matter, appellant was reluctant to deal with Mr. Neilson on any basis. The memory of what had just happened at TEENE TOWNE made appellant wonder whether it was worth the risk, to get involved with Mr. Neilson, merely to get a loan at a lower interest rate and with fewer points discount. Appellant had obtained two other loan commitments in Houston, Texas and was proceeding the close with one of them while these negotiations were taking place.

At Mr. Tuft's insistence that he absolutely controlled Mr. Neilson, and that he would personally warrant that Mr. Neilson would never, ever, under any circumstances interfere with appellant or his building, did appellant relent. Appellant agreed that Mr. Neilson could shop the loan at the local banks, and furnished him with appraisals, title reports, and plans and specifications with which to work. Mr. Neilson tried at several banks, and finally obtained from Walker Bank and Trust Company a committment for \$85,000.00 at 6 1/4% interest for 15 years, with a 1% service charge. While the amount was disappointing, (Houston had offered \$100,000.00), the interest rate was good (Houston wanted 7%), the service charge was good (Houston wanted 6% discount), and the term was good (Houston had only offered a 10-year loan). Appellant and the second mortgagee were able to negotiate an agreement to re-write \$5,000.00 of the second mortgage, which brought total financing to \$90,000.00.

During luncheon engagements and on other social occasions, Mr. Neilson and Mr. Tuft were making repeated assurances of continuing help in

appellant's temporary money squeeze. The temptation was simply too much, and appellant succumbed to the temptation to be helped, and agreed that Mr. Neilson could go ahead with the loan, as appellant's agent, on the terms stated. In the meantime, a satisfactory arrangement had been reached regarding the TEENE TOWNE property, and the whole matter was concluded.

It took a month or two after that to clear the title to the subject property, hereinafter referred to as the SURETY BUILDING. Until that time, no-one had even concerned themselves with the fact that record title was vested in the name of Herta K. Dennett, appellant's wife. A long development of the historical background relating to this matter seems unnecessary. Suffice it to say that the record title has always been in the name of Herta K. Dennett, but that appellant has always had possession and always managed the property. For estate planning and other purposes, appellant have from time to time, variously considered the property to be that of Mrs. Dennett, that of appellant, and that of both. Since appellant and Mrs. Dennett have always issued combined and consolidated profit and loss statements and balance sheets, it has really never been an issue, until this law suit was commenced, as to who owned the property.

The proposed closing at Walker Bank and Trust became so annoying and complicated, that appellant told Mr. Neilson and Mr. Tuft to forget the whole matter—it wasn't worth the trouble. Mr. Tuft and Mr. Neilson wouldn't let that happen, though. In advance of the closing, Walker Bank had prepared a closing statement which was so distorted and inaccurate, and so totally unacceptable, that

appellant and his wife, even on the day of closing, decided not to go through with the loan. Hal Waldo entered into the picture, trying to save the loan, inasmuch as Walker Bank had quite an investment in it by then, and agreed to insert in the closing statement certain reservations which would preserve certain rights with respect to certain of the items therein recited. When, however, Mr. Waldo made an addendum to the trust deed to the effect that if Mr. Neilson ever conveyed title back to the grantors, appellant and his wife, that Walker Bank could declare the trust deed at once due and payable, appellant and his wife walked out of the closing and refused to go forward. Mr. Neilson pursued appellant down the corridor, insisting that the matter be concluded, and assuring appellant that if Walker Bank ever invoked that clause, that he could get equal or better financing elsewhere at any time, and would do so, if called upon to do so.

It was decided, however, that it would be imprudent to sign the deed which appellant had prepared, which would have reconveyed title to the grantors, due to the new addendum made to the trust deed. Appellant's wife had left in the meantime, as had Mr. Neilson's wife, and the remaining details were hashed out between appellant, Mr. Neilson, and Hal Waldo. Walker Bank agreed to send Mr. Neilson the disbursing check in a few days, after the final title policy had been issued.

Mr. Neilson and appellant departed the bank together. As we left, Mr. Neilson said, "Okay kid, there's your deal. Good Luck. Drop by the office in a few days and get your money. Take good care of the building and make your payments. I don't want Walker Bank asking me for any money on this."

Out of the closing proceeds of \$85,000.00, appellant authorized disbursement, conditionally, and with rights to reclaim refunds reserved, of \$30,298.21 to Federated Security Insurance Co., of \$23,028.00 to Waller & Lewis, second mortgages, of \$375.00 for a title policy, of \$850.00 for the 1% service charge, of \$116.95 for a special improvement district assessment, and for miscellaneous recording, photograph, credit report, and amortization schedule expenses in the approximate amount of about \$25.00. Appellant further authorized the withholding of \$1,000.00 to insure completion of the hard-surfacing of the parking lot and \$3,100.00 to cover a latent defect in the title. In tabular form, the debits and credits look like this:

| Loan Proceeds: 85,000.00 | |
|-----------------------------|-------------|
| Disbursed to Federated | 30,298.21 |
| Disbursed to Waller & Lewis | 23,028.00 |
| Title Policy | 375.00 |
| l% Service Charge | 850.00 |
| Special Improvement Dist | 116.95 |
| Misc. Expense | 25.00 |
| Parking Lot Escrow | 1,000.00 |
| Title Company Escrow | 3,100.00 |
| Balancing Totals 85,000.00 | 57, 793. 16 |
| Undisbursed Residue | 28,206.84 |
| Totals to balance 85,000.00 | 85,000.00 |

There was a tenative agreement to apply \$17,140.00 of the residue towards the indebtedness of E. R. VomBaur on the Teene Towne property on condition that the property be sold so that the joint ownership of the property in Murray City be reflected in E. R. VomBaur and the appellant. This condition never came to pass, but A. P. Neilson may have attempted to apply it for the purpose it was originally earmarked. If so, this can simply be the subject matter of another

law suit.

Mr. Neilson did, however, upon appellant's request, disburse the sum of \$7,565.17 to cover some pressing bills. For this he should receive credit. To carry the building through a period of remodelling, appellant left all of the balance and residue of the loan proceeds with A. P. Neilson in trust, and to increase the balances on hand, caused to be paid to Mr. Neilson the rent due from the Community Mental Health Center of about \$2,000.00. Appellant further added about \$400.00 of his own funds to the escrow in about February of 1967, bringing the total funds for which Mr. Neilson has not yet accounted to about \$23,041.67 plus the \$1,000.00 which was escrowed at Walker Bank and Trust.

Mr. Neilson has been asked repeatedly for an accounting, which he has, in nearly two years, failed to supply. Through counsel, appellant has been able to ascertain that Mr. Neilson has disbursed about \$13,000.00 in payments and constructions costs until last summer, and perhaps another \$3,000.00 or \$4,000.00 since then, so that the funds on hand may nearly be accounted for by now.

Appellant retained possession of the building, in accordance with the understanding that Mr. Neilson was retaining record title only in trust. The first several months elapsed without incident. Mr. Neilson's bookkeeper simply made the installments due to the bank out of the funds she was holding in trust.

Disagreement started when Mrs. Riter, closing agent at Walker Bank began to annoy Mr. Neilson about the black-topping on the parking lot. The installation was held up due to an about-face by Salt Lake City Corporation, which

in conjuntion with the building permit issued to appellant, required that the water drainage be directed southward from Douglas Street to 2100 South, instead of northward, as the water had theretofore drained. Reversal of the drainage patternrequired extensive engineering, design, and fill, which appellant undertook, during the months of June and July 1966 to do. this could be done, however, the entire rear wall of the building had to be removed, new foundations and footings installed, and a new wall built. This was done entirely by appeallant, nearly two months after the closing at Walker Bank. Just when the mulch was ready to be installed on the parking lot, on about July 20th, 1966, the City Engineer intervened, and indicated that the drainage had to be reversed to conform with the old pattern.

This needless and expensive about-face was frustrating and expensive to say the least, and was a source of renewed irritation to Walker Bank and Trust Company, who in turn harrassed Mr. Neilson because the parking lot wasn't installed. Annoyed by the incessant calls made to him by Walker Bank, Mr. Neilson, in turn made frequent calls to appellant, inquiring as to what was holding up the installation.

Upon being told about the city's position,
Mr. Neilson volunteered his help to get the problem solved. He claimed to be a political creditor
of George Catmull, and recommended that he engage
Mr. Catmull's personal attention to the completion
of the job, rather than to pursue an action against
the City. He then requested appellant to leave the
matter of the parking lot entirely to him, and not
to interfere; that he could get it done best without
any help.

This sounded like a reasonable solution, and so the total responsibility was given to him on or about August 15, 1966.

Upon Mr. Neilson's intervention, work and progress ceased suddenly and completely. Appellant was concerned about the mounting loss of income and the unexplained delays. Appellant tried, but was unable to make any contact at all with Mr. Neilson. He was frequently in Southern California. Other times he was "indisposed", or "busy". Through these various excuses and delays, the installation of the parking lot mulch was not completed until May 1967, a lapse of nearly nine months from the time he undertook the job. During this time, there was a complete cessation of rental income, and through Mr. Neilson's delay, the building got into financial difficulty.

During December 1966, appeliant and Mr. Neilson looked over other needs of the building, for which Mr. Neilson had some help during the off-season in the construction business. Two offices had some old rain damage (although negligible), and the feasibility of installing a new roof was discussed. Appellant and Mr. Neilson agreed that a shell would be built over the front part of the building, where there were previously gables, and a new built-up roof installed over the flat part of the building. The cost was estimated at about \$1,000.00 plus labor. There were other miscellaneous needs, too numerous to detail here. These amounted to about \$2,000.00. The agreement between appellant and Mr. Neilson was very simple. Appellant would provide about \$1,000.00 towards payment of the building's needs. Mr. Neilson would advance the rest. Mr. Neilson would furnish an accounting of the funds he had on hand still, and

if the expenditures exceeded the funds on hand, appellant would apply all of the gross rent proceeds towards payment of the over-draft until the account was in balance.

Things progressed quite well for about three months. Mr. Neilson's personal problem with intoxicants became a source of considerable annoyance, and at times he would send workmen to do work appeallant had already had done, and do other irrational things, but by staying in close contact with the project, appellant was able to keep things under control.

As it turned out, Mr. Neilson grew so irritable at times that appellant made the disbursements Mr. Neilson had agreed to make, rather than to aggravate him. Between November 1966 and May 1967, appellant disbursed, instead of the \$1,000.00 he agreed to disburse, the sum of \$2,150.83 to materialmen and laborers. The list is too detailed to burden this brief with a list of the parties and amounts.

On March 7, 1967, Mr. Neilson and appellant had a rather serious and major confrontation. Appellant had contracted with Mountain Fuel Supply to install a gas meter in the front of the building between the filigree blockwork and the front wall, and had carefully had the gas mains engineered so that the largest feeder pipe faced towards the place the meter was to go, and then reduced in size by steps, as branch lines were taken off, so that the pressure to each appliance could be equalized and no furnace or water heater would be starved.

After paying the fee, and arriving on the job a few days later, appellant learned that Mountain Fuel Supply had undertaken to have the

meter installed in the rear of the building. The placement was not only dangerous inasmuch as it was on a parking lot, but unsightly, and engineered completely backwards, so that the gas flow went into small pipes and then progressively larger pipes. Furthermore, the meter was in the way of the next construction step, where building was to take place shortly, a most annoying and expensive development.

When called to account for the incorrect installation, Mountain Fuel Supply replied that Mr. Neilson had ordered the change. They were very apologetic and agreed to take out the yard line and install it as contracted. Within a few minutes Mr. Neilson arrived. He was hardly rational. He was so completely under the apparent influence of intoxicants that he could hardly ta'k, and flew into a rage. He said that if appellant did not let him do the construction work, and stay away from the job until he got it done, he would take the building away from appeallant. He accompanied his threat by a harmless assault, which due to his condition consisted of no more than flailing the air.

Within a few days, Mr. J. Reed Tuft contacted appellant and demanded some type of surrender of possession until the building could be finished, rented and occupied, or some type of receiver. Mr. Tuft demanded a Carte Blanche as far as additional expenditures were concerned, a rather unlikely proposition in light of the conduct and behavior of Mr. Neilson recently exhibited.

2

A proposal that the items Mr. Neilson thought should still be done should be inventoried and carefully bid was rejected by Mr. Tuft. Upon refusal to agree, Mr. Tuft instigated an action in the District Court.

Be it remembered, that appellant or his wife has always treated the building as theirs, and A. P. Neilson has never treated the building as his. His accountant informs appellant that Mr. Neilson has never claimed any operating profit or loss, or interest or taxes paid on his income tax return. Likewise, Mr. Neilson has never had possession of the building, except when he broke and entered, by force, about the time the dispute over the gas meter arose.

Mr. Marshall, upon filing the complaint approached Judge Stewart M. Hanson in the hall of the City and County Building. What happened there can only be pieced together, but discloses a rather unique happening. Judge Hansen signed a paper which Mr. Marshall put in front of him. He apparently didn't know what he was signing, because when approached the next day by the appellant, he not only denied that he had signed any papers relating to appellant or his wife, but further denied signing any injunctions or appointments of receivers on the previous day. When pressed by appellant for explanations, the judge became quite annoyed and adamant, and only when confronted with his own signature on an order appointing a receiver and enjoining certain activities on the building, did he finally realize what he had done. What he said in commentary on the matter at the realization of what had happened, is not proper subject matter to repeat in a brief. He did the only thing available to him, namely to exempt from operation of the injunction and receivership the appellant's estate and activities. One thing was brought out at this point, however, and that was the fact that no witnesses had been sworn and testified in support of the matters which would have justified the temporary relief sought and obtained, this notwithstanding the requirements of Canon 16

of Judicial Ethics. He thereupon disqualified himself sua sponte from entering any further orders relating to the affairs of appellant or his wife., so that he would not be requested to do anything further in the case.

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