1967

John Elwood Dennett v. A. P. Neilson : Breif of Respondent

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

ARGUMENT:

1. THE DISTRICT COURT OF SALT LAKE COUNTY HAD JURISDICTION OVER THE SUBJECT REAL PROPERTY AND INTERVENOR-APPELLANT JOHN ELWOOD DENNETT.

Mr. A. P. Neilson and his wife, Lillie I. Neilson, filed an action in the District Court of Salt Lake County to foreclose any equitable interest remaining in a building and lot situated in Salt Lake County to Herta K. Dennett, the wife of Intervenor-Appellant. Copies of a Warranty Deed to the property running from Defendants Herta K. Dennett to Plaintiff A. P. Neilson and a Quit-Claim Deed running from Intervenor-Respondent John Elwood Dennett to Plaintiff A. P. Neilson were before the Court, (R.25). Defendant Herta K. Dennett admitted the record title was in Plaintiffs but claimed

that Plaintiffs' interest was one in trust for John Elwood Dennett, her husband (R.54).

Defendant Herta K. Dennett and John Elwood Dennett tried to get Appellant into the action and on September 13, 1967, the Court signed an Order allowing Intervenor-Appellant John Elwood Dennett to intervene and file a Complaint in Intervention. Contemporaneously with this Order the Court ordered John Elwood Dennett to turn over \$1,500.00, admittedly in John Elwood Dennett's pocket, to Alvin I. Smith, Esq., an Officer of the Court, duly appointed Receiver in the subject litigation.

The filing of the action to foreclose a mortgage on certain described real property situated in Salt Lake County gave the Court jurisdiction over the subject matter of the action, 78-3-4, and 78-13-1,

Utah Code Annotated 1953, and obviously Intervenor-Appellant is under the jurisdiction of the Court as a party at his own request.

I am sure that even Intervenor-Appellant would not have the temerity to suggest that Judge Wilkins did not have the power, under 78-7-17 Utah Code Annotated 1953, to punish for contempt under the proper circumstances.

2. THE FACTS ESSENTIAL TO THE FINDING OF JOHN ELWOOD DENNETT IN CONTEMPT OF COURT ARE UNDISPUTED.

The facts surrounding the Order holding John Elwood Dennett in Contempt are rather simple, although Intervenor-Appellant would have this Court think there are real complications involved and questions of constitutional law.

John Elwood Dennett, a party to

the action, was ordered, (in the presence of the Court), to turn over monies admittedly received by him (see page 2 of Appellant's brief), as rent from tenants of the building to Alvin I. Smith, an Officer of the Court, pursuant to an Order appointing Alvin I. Smith, Receiver of the said property. Dennett not only did not turn the money over to Mr. Smith, but did not bother to plead an inability.

"A Receiver is entitled to collect rents accruing upon property transferred to him." 4 Am Jur Receivers § 197.

"A party to the action may be summarily compelled to turn over to the Receiver any portion of the property covered by the Receivership which he holds," 2 Clark on Receivers 1044.

A proper Affidavit was filed; an Order to Show Cause served, and a hearing

was had, at which hearing, Appellant was present.

3. THE CLAIM OF INTERVENOR-

APPELLANT JOHN ELWOOD DENNETT THAT THE ORDER OF THE COURT WAS NOT LAWFUL IS NOT SUPPORTED BY LAW.

A reading of the transcripts of the hearings would expose manifold examples of insolence and contemptuous behavior by John Elwood Dennett toward our judicial system. The writer submits that the first paragraph of the second page of Appellant's brief is contemptuous.

However, let us examine whether or not the Order of the Court was not "lawful", as opined by Appellant. Rule 66 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, provides that a Receiver may be appointed ex parte. Rule 66 (d), upon which Appellant relies so heavily, is here set forth in toto,

"Oath and Undertaking of Receiver. Before entering upon his duties, a Receiver must be sworn to perform them faithfully, and with one or more sureties, approved by the Court, execute an undertaking to such persons and in such sums as the Court may direct, to the effect that he will faithfully discharge the duties of the Receiver in the action and obey the Orders of the Court therein." Dennett contends that the language of the statute imposes a duty upon the Receiver to execute an undertaking. Indeed the language does so state, however, the same sentence says "to such persons, and in such sums as the Court may direct...." this would seem to leave it discretionary with the Court; indeed the matter was not overlooked in the subject Order, but it was expressly set out that "it is not necessary that the said First Security State

Bank be required to post an Undertaking".

In the event the Receiver applied for an injunction against a third person, the Receiver would be obliged to file an Undertaking, Popp vs. Daisy Gold Min. Co. 22 Utah 457, 63 P.185. The ruling in this case is understandable as the third party is not before the Court and could be irreparably damaged with no recourse. However, in the subject case we are not concerned with potentially innocent third parties but rather parties to the action. The Order Substituting Receivers also specifically stated that Alvin I. Smith, a member of the Utah Bar and already an Officer of the Court would not be required to post a bond.

Both First Security State Bank and Alvin I. Smith filed the required Oaths of Receiver, (R.12, R.43).

Whether or not the filing of a bond is technically necessary for the final discharge of Alvin I. Smith as Receiver, is of no great consequence when viewing the question of contempt. Dennett had admitted refusing to turn over property under the jurisdiction of the Court to an Officer of the Court. If the Court had Ordered Dennett to turn this money over to the Clerk of the Court, it is submitted that a refusal to do so would be contemptuous. Indeed the contempt with which we are dealing in this matter has the earmark of criminal contempt as well as civil. The Order was not directed as enforcing relief for one party against the other. The Order was to turn money over to an arm of the Court, for the benefit of all the parties. The disobedience of this Order, indeed the arrogant defiance of

this Order, shows the deep disrespect that Dennett holds for the Third District Court and indeed seems to held for any Court in this State.

4. ASSUMING ARGUENDO THAT THE ORDER APPOINTING THE RECEIVER WAS IMPERFECT, THE DEFECT IS NOT JURISDICTIONAL AND MAY BE CURED.

Although it has been held to the contrary, the majority view is that the technicality of filing an Undertaking by a Receiver is not fatal and therefore jurisdictional, and may be cured by a nunc pro tunc Order, 45 Am. Jur., Receivers, § 94.

5. ASSUMING ARGUENDO THAT THE ORDER APPOINTING THE RECEIVER WAS IMPERFECT THE DEFECT MAY NOT BE COLLATERALLY ATTACKED.

"When the Court appointing a Receiver has jurisdiction of the subject matter and

of the parties, its order appointing the Receiver, no matter how erroneous, cannot be collaterally attacked, and an objection to the appointment of a Receiver comes too late, where it is not made until a hearing in Appellate Court and is not jurisdictional," 43 Am Jur, Receivers § 116.

The situation before this Court is that Mrs. Dennett did not see fit to object to the appointment of First Security Bank as Receiver because of the bond. Is it unreasonable to assume that John Elwood Dennett was well aware of what his wife was doing, if not in fact dictating every word for her lawyer's pen?

6. ASSUMING ARGUENDO THAT THE ORDER APPOINTING THE RECEIVER WAS IMPERFECT THE ONLY REMEDY OPEN TO APPELLANT HAS NOT BEEN FOLLOWED.

An Order appointing Receiver pendente lite is not a final order from which an appeal would lie in the State of Utah, Popp vs. Daisy Gold Mining Co., Supra. It is submitted that the failure of Mrs. Herta K. Dennett and of Intervenor-Appellant to complain as to the setting of the amount of the Receivers Bond amounts to an acquiescence to that portion of the Court's Order, the objections as to the appointment of any Receiver were made and indeed hearing was held upon these objections. Although the Orders appointing and substituting a Receiver were not final Orders and therefore were not subject to Appeal as a matter of right, Appellant Dennett could have followed the procedure for taking an Interlocutory Appeal, as set forth at Rule 72 B, Utah Rule of Civil Procedure. This route Dennett did not

see fit to follow, and therefore cannot be heard at this time to complain as to any facet of the appointment of a Receiver in the subject case.

Although the exact steps which Intervenor-Appellant should have followed to protect an appeal are nowhere set forth in the Utah cases, it would seem that the proper approach would have been to move the Court to vacate the appointment of a Receiver-which he did; from the denial of this Order he could have sought permission to take an Interlocutory Appeal-which he did not do. It is well established, as pointed out above, that complaint as to appointment of the Receiver or the technical defects of the said appointment will not be heard in a collateral attack. The refusal to pursue the remedies as set forth above coupled with the refusal

to obey a proper Order of the Court renders the objection herein to the proper appointment of the Receiver a collateral attack raised in the matter of contempt, and as such will not be heard, ⁴⁵Am Jur Receivers § 116.
^

Irrespective of whether an Order discharging or vacating the appointment of a Receiver is otherwise appealable, it has been generally held that such Order is not appealable, where it is made for the purpose of substituting another Receiver for the one previously appointed, 72 Alr (2d) 1087.

CONCLUSION

Even a perfunctory perusal of the record will disclose the complete contempt with which the Intervenor-Appellant John Elwood Dennett holds and treats the Orders of the Courts of the State of Utah, and indeed of the Courts of the United States. This Court cannot fail to marvel at the

forebearance of Judge Wilkins; the real question before this Court is whether anyone, with or without the unsavory reputation of Intervenor-Appellant, can continually flout the established law and judicial system of the State of Utah with impunity. Intervenor-Appellant willfully and arrogantly refused, when ordered by the Court, to turn over monies, taken by him from tenants, when he was fully aware of the fact that a Receiver had been duly appointed to manage the premises occupied by the tenants. The Receiver, whether or not suffering from a technical defect in appointment, was nevertheless an Officer in good standing of the Court. The Court's Order to Dennett to turn the money over to Mr. Smith was a lawful Order, the refusal of which to obey, quite rightly resulting in an Order of Contempt.

It is respectfully submitted that the

Honorable D. Frank Wilkins should be
upheld in his Order of Contempt against
Mr. Devious Dennett, aka John Elwood
Dennett.